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NOTICE FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SUNRAJ DIAMOND EXPORTS LIMITED

(CIN: L36912MH1990PLC057803)

Registered Office: 616 Prasad Chambers,6th Floor Plot CS 1487 Tata Road, 2, Roxy Cinema,
Opera House, Girgaon, Mumbai-400 004.

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 31stAnnual General Meeting of the Members of SUNRAJ
DIAMOND EXPORTS LIMITED will be held through Video conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-
Visual Means (OAVM) on Thursday, 30th day of September, 2021 at 11.30 a.m. to transact the
following businesses:

I. Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and
Consolidated) i.e. Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow statement for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 and
the reports of the Directors’ and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sunny Sunil Gandhi (DIN 00695322) as a Whole-Time,
Executive director who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

II. Special Business:

3. To regularize the appointment of Mr. Shivil Kapoor, Independent Director (Din 08616488),
who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-
ANSHUL GARG

Company Secretary
(Membership No. A43709)

Registered Office
616 Prasad Chambers,6th Floor
Plot CS 1487 Tata Road, 2, Roxy Cinema,
Opera House, Girgaon, Mumbai-400 004.

Dated: 4th September, 2021.
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NOTES

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to
be followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/
2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular
No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and
all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to
the AGM venue is not required and general meeting be held through video conferencing
(VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and participate in
the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast
their votes through e-voting.

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first
come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members
in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by
a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will
be provided by NSDL.

6. Members joining the meeting through VC, who have not already cast their vote by means of
remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the AGM.
The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also join
the AGM through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

7.  In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.
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8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer books will remain closed from 24th September,
2021, 2021 to 30th September, 2021 (both days inclusive).

9. Members who have not registered their e-mail address are requested to register the same in
respect of shares held in electronic form with the Depository through their Depository
Participant(s) and in respect of shares held in physical form by writing to the Company’s
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd 18-20, Jaferbhoy
Ind. Estate, 1st Floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400059.E-
mail: support@adroitcorporate.com

10. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to special
businesses to be transacted at the 31st AGM is annexed hereto.

11. The details of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the 31st AGM are
provided in Annexure I of this Notice. The Company has received the requisite consents/
declarations for the appointment/ re-appointment under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder.

12. Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination
in respect of their shareholding in the Company. The Nomination Form SH-13 prescribed
by the Government can be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent from its
office address.

13. The Company has appointed Mr. Kiran Doshi, Practising Company Secretary, to act as the
Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

14. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of
NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman. The result shall also be
immediately forwarded to BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed.

15. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.sunrajdiamonds.com The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on
the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility)
i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com.

16. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and
MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,
2020 and MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.

17. The following documents will be available for inspection by the Members electronically
during the 31st AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to
support@adroitcorporate.com.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, and the Register
of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained under the
Companies Act, 2013.

18. As the 31st AGM is being held through VC, the route map is not annexed to this Notice.
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PROCESS OF E-VOTING

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, 27th September, 2021 at 09:00 A.M. and
ends on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 05: 00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register
of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 23rd September,
2021, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-
off date, being 23rd September, 2021.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of
shareholders

Login Method

I n d i v i d u a l
S h a r e h o l d e r s
holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on
a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be
able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online
for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below
for seamless voting experience.

I n d i v i d u a l
S h a r e h o l d e r s
holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login
through their user id and password. Option will be made available
to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The
URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest arehttps://
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor www.cdslindia.com and
click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting
is in progress.
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I n d i v i d u a l
S h a r e h o l d e r s
(holding securities
in demat mode)
login through their
d e p o s i t o r y
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and
a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https:/
/eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e.
Cast your vote electronically.

Login type Helpdesk details

I n d i v i d u a l
S h a r e h o l d e r s
holding securities
in demat mode
with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30

I n d i v i d u a l
S h a r e h o l d e r s
holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43
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4. Your User ID details are given below :

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password
to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will
force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf
file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have
forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Your User ID is:Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client
ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is
IN300***12******.

a) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with NSDL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is
12************** then your user ID is
12**************

b) For Members who hold shares in demat
account with CDSL.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***

c) For Members holding shares in Physical
Form.
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b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can
send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/
folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting
the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting
on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on "Login" button.

9. After you click on the "Login" button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you
need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to kiran@cskdco.com <Please mention the e-mail ID of
Scrutinizer> with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled
upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will
need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send
a request to (Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions
set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
info@sunrajdiamonds.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or
16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) to info@sunrajdiamonds.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode.

2. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

3. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote
e-voting.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM
link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested
to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/
OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-
Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions
in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at info@sunrajdiamonds.com The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6. Members who have any queries or any questions can email to the Company on
info@sunrajdiamonds.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-
ANSHUL GARG

Company Secretary
(Membership No. A43709)

Registered Office
616 Prasad Chambers,6th Floor
Plot CS 1487 Tata Road, 2, Roxy Cinema,
Opera House, Girgaon, Mumbai-400 004.

Dated: 4th September, 2021.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

Item No. 3

Board of directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Shivil Kapoor, Independent Director (Din
08616488) as an Additional Director of the Company. Accordingly, in terms of the requirements
of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 approval of the members of the Company is required to
regularize the appointment of Mr. Shivil Kapoor as an Independent Director of the Company.

Brief profile of Mr. Shivil Kapoor is given below for reference of the member:

Mr. Shivil Kapoor is a member of ICSI having experience of 6 years and a bachelor’s degree in
Commerce & Law. He has worked in different industries like Real Estate, NBFC, and Stock
Brokering & Inverter and Battery Industries. The companies in which he has worked so far are
Aamby Valley Ltd, Luminus Power ltd, AJCON Global Services Ltd.

Hence, approval of the Members is sought for the resolution proposed at item number 3 of the
notice.

The Board of Directors recommended the resolutions for your approval.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are interested in these resolutions.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sd/-
ANSHUL GARG

Company Secretary
(Membership No. A43709)

Registered Office
616 Prasad Chambers,6th Floor
Plot CS 1487 Tata Road, 2, Roxy Cinema,
Opera House, Girgaon, Mumbai-400 004.

Dated: 4th September, 2021.
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ANNEXURE - I
Details of Directors seeking Re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting. (Pursuant to  the
SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2  on “General Meetings”)

1. Mr. Sunny Sunil Gandhi – Whole-Time Director

1. Name of Director Mr. Sunny Sunil Gandhi

2 Director Identification Number (DIN) 00695322

3. Date of Birth 25/12/1982

4. Date of Appointment 01/10/2006

5. Brief Resume of Director Mr. Sunny Gandhi has completed his
B.Com. and has obtained training in
manufacturing and assortment of rough
and polished diamonds.

6. Nature of Expertise in specific Finance & Management
functional areas

7. Disclosure of Relationships between Director is husband of Mrs. Shruti
director inter-se Sunny Gandhi

8. Directorship in Other Companies Sunraj Investment and Finance Private
Limited

9. Committee position held in other companies Nil

10. Shareholding in the Company (No. of shares) 1320800

2. Mr. Shivil Kapoor – Independent Director

1. Name of Director Mr. Shivil Kapoor

2 Director Identification Number (DIN) 08616488

3. Date of Birth 16.10.1993

4. Date of Appointment 29.11.2019

5 Brief Resume of Director Mr. Shivil Kapoor is a member of ICSI
having experience of 6years and a
bachelor’s degree in Commerce & Law.
He has worked in different industries like
Real Estate, NBFC, and Stock Brokering
& Inverter and Battery Industries. The
companies in which he has worked so
far are Aamby Valley Ltd, Luminus Power
Ltd, AJCON Global Services Ltd.

6. Nature of Expertise in specific Finance, Legal, Secretarial &
functional areas Compliance.

7. Disclosure of Relationships between Independent Director
director inter-se

8. Directorship in Other Companies  Nil

9. Committee position held in other companies Nil

10. Shareholding in the Company (No. of shares) Nil
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 31st Annual Report and Audited Statement of Accounts
of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The salient features of the Company’s working for the year under review are as under:
(`  In Rs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021

Sales and other Income 1,24,17,236 2,12,65,770 1,29,73,194

Profit /(Loss) before Interest and Depreciation (34,20,454) 54,31,603 (1,70,80,684)

Less Interest & Finance Expenses 89,33,175 69,77,193 89,33,175

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation (1,23,53,629) (15,45,590) (2,60,13,859)

Less: Depreciation 37,695 3,38,532 37,695

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation (1,23,91,324)   (18,84,122) (26,051,554)

Less: Provision for Taxation (net) NIL NIL NIL

Less/Add: Deferred Tax 14,319 3,19,889 14,319

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,31,01,906) (24,20,500) (26,762,136)

Less: Tax Adjustment relating to prior years 6,96,262 2,16,489 6,96,262

Add: Surplus brought forward from Previous year (3,02,91,895) (2,78,42,503) (31,716,603)

Balance carried to Balance sheet (4,33,93,801) (3,02,91,895) (58,478,739)

Operations

Your Company has recorded a turnover of Rs. 12,411,960 /- during the year under review as opposed
to Rs.77,59,768 in the previous year.

Dividend

With a view to conserving the resources of your Company, your Directors have decided not to
recommend Dividend for the year.

Material Changes and Commitment Affecting Financial Position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company i.e 31st March 2021, and
the date of the Directors’ report.
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Directorate

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of your Company, Mr.
Sunny Sunil Gandhi (Din: 00695322) retires by rotation and is eligible for  re-appointment.

Brief profiles of the Director seeking re-appointment are annexed to the Notice in Annexure I.

Board Evaluation

The Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of the Directors individually including
Independent Directors, Board as a whole and of its various committees on parameters such as skills,
knowledge, participation in meetings, contribution towards Corporate Governance practices,
compliance with code of ethics etc.

Independent Directors have carried out performance evaluation of non-independent Directors,
Chairman of the Board and Board as a whole with respect to knowledge to perform the role, time and
level of participation, performance of duties and level of oversight and professional conduct and
independence.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Meetings

During the year Four Board Meetings were convened and held. The details thereof are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Sunny Gandhi, Wholetime
Director, Mr. Prabodhchandra Joshi, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Anshul Garg, Company Secretary
are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Declaration by Independent Directors

Necessary declarations have been obtained from all the Independent Directors under Section 149 (6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulations 16(1)(b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies

Your Company has a wholly owned foreign subsidiary Company in Dubai at the Dubai Multi
Commodities Centre (DMCC), UAE in the name of SUNRAJ DIAMONDS DMCC.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the statement containing salient features of the Financial statements of the Company’s
Subsidiaries (in Form AOC-1)- Annexure A  is forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statement.

Pursuant to Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is exempted from attaching to its
Annual Report of the Subsidiary Company viz. SUNRAJ DIAMONDS DMCC as the same is listed on
the website of the company.

The financial statement of the subsidiary Company is kept open for inspection by the shareholders at



31st Annual Report 2020-2021

15

the Registered Office of the Company. The Company shall provide the copy of the financial statement
of its subsidiary company to the shareholders upon their request free of cost.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has entered into two related party
transactions (“RPT”) requiring the approval of the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013. The requisite approvals of the Board were obtained in its meeting held on
30th June, 2021

Further, no RPT, exceeding the applicable threshold prescribed pursuant to Rule 15(3) (a) of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, requiring member’s approval was entered
into by the Company during the financial year 202021.

The disclosure of RPT as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC
2 is attached as Annexure B to this Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

Business Risk Management

The Company manages and monitors principal risks and uncertainties that can impact ability of the
Company to achieve its targets/ objectives. Timely reports are placed before the board for considering
various risks involved in the Company business/ operations. The Board evaluates these reports and
necessary / corrective actions are then implemented.

A brief report on risk evaluation and management is provided under Management’s Discussion and
Analysis Report forming part of this Annual Report.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place, adequate systems and procedures for implementation of internal financial
control across the organization which enables the Company to ensure that these controls are operating
effectively.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

The Company does not own any manufacturing facility and hence the particulars relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption as stipulated in the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are not applicable. Particulars with regards to foreign exchange expenditure and earning are
given in Note Nos. 27(b)of the notes to the accounts.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as
the said provisions are not applicable to the Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors would like to assure the members that the financial statements for the year under
review conform in their entirety to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. The Directors
confirm that:
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a) the Annual Accounts have been prepared in conformity with the applicable Accounting Standards;

b) the Accounting Policies selected and applied on a consistent basis, give a true and fair view of

the affairs of the Company and of the profit for the financial year;

c) sufficient care has been taken that adequate accounting records have been maintained for

safeguarding the assets of the Company; and for prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities;

d) the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) the internal financial controls laid down in the Company were adequate and operating effectively;

f) The systems devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were adequate

and operating effectively.

Share Registrar & Transfer Agent

The Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents for shares is Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd (ACSPL).

ACSPL is a SEBI registered Registrar & Transfer Agent. The contact details of ACSPL are mentioned

in the Report on Corporate Governance. Investors are requested to address their queries, if any to

ACSPL; however, in case of difficulties, as always, they are welcome to contact the Company’s

Compliance Officer, the contact particulars of which are contained in the Report on Corporate

Governance.

Fixed Deposit

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from the public during the year within the meaning of

Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,2014.

Particulars of Employees

The Company does not have any employee covered under the provisions of Rule 5 (2) of The Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and therefore, this information

has not been furnished as part of this Report.

The prescribed particulars of employees required under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure II and forms a part

of this Report of the Directors.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and Whistle-Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and

mis-management, if any, and conducting business with integrity, including in accordance with all

applicable laws and regulations.

Auditors

The Board of Directors recommends ratification of appointment of M/s. Govind Prasad and Co

Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No 114360W as the Statutory Auditor of the Company

for the FY 2021-2022.
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Auditors’ Report

The Auditors’ Report to the shareholders does contain reservation, qualification and adverse remark
as under:

Sr No Qualifications made by Auditor Explanations by the Board

1. The Company has not made the provision
of employee cost with reference to the
retirement benefits of the employees.
Details of the same is mentioned in Note
no. 31 of the Audit Report.

2. The company has delayed in transferring
the amount to Investors Education
Protection Fund Account as required by the
section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 the Company has appointed M/s Kiran
Doshi & Co., Company Secretary in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The
Secretarial Audit Report in the prescribed Form No. MR-3 is annexed herewith.

QUALIFICATION IN SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT AND EXPLANATIONS BY THE BOARD:

The Company will take necessary steps to
comply with the transfer of Unclaimed dividend
to IEPF.

The Company will take necessary steps to
comply with the transfer of Shares to IEPF.

The company will take necessary steps to
complete the filing.

a) The Company has not transferred Unclaimed
Dividend for the financial years 2011-2012and
2012 – 2013 to the Investor Education &
Protection Fund (IEPF) as per the provisions of
Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder.

b) The Company has not transferred the Shares
on which Dividend has not been claimed for 7
consecutive years as per the provisions of
Sections 124 & 125 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 6 of the IEPF Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016.

c) The Company has not filed Form MR – 1
pertaining to re-appointment of Whole- time
Director and remuneration payable to him as
required by Rule 3 of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Qualifications made by Secretarial Auditor Explanations by the Board

The Opinion of the Auditor in Self
explanatory and Company is in process of
complying the same and necessary
compliance will be done in due course.

The Company has inadvertently delayed in
transferring the amount to Investors
Education Protection Fund Account as
required by the section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Company is in
process of complying the same and
necessary compliance will be done in due
course.
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d) The Company appointed a Whole-time Company
Secretary with effect from 7th May, 2019 as
required under Section 203 of the Act however
the same was not informed to Stock exchange
within due date and as the Company is yet to
clear penalty amount levied by the Stock
Exchange, the appointment of Whole-time
Company Secretary is yet not taken on record
by the Stock Exchange.

e) Information to be provided on the Company’s
website has not been updated as per the
requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

f) The Company has done necessary compliance
with stock exchange as required under SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, with few delays
under few regulations as under:

· Regulation 31- Shareholding Pattern.
· Regulation 33- Financial Results.
· Regulation 27(2)- Corporate Governance.
· Regulation 55A- Reconciliation of Share Capital

Audit.
· Regulation 47- Newspaper Publication of

Financial results.
· Regulation 29- Intimation of Notice of Board

Meeting

g) The Company has not submitted the Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report for the year
ended 31st March, 2020 in terms of SEBI
Circular bearing reference CIR/CFD/CMD1/
27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019.

h) BSE has given notice to the Company that the
Company’s scrips have been shifted to “Z / ZP
/ ZY” group with effect from 28th May, 2019,
due to non-compliance with Regulation 27 (2)
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

i) The Annual General Meeting for the year ended
31st March 2020, has not been held within the
time prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

j) The Company has yet not filed Form MGT-7 for
the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

k) The Company exceeded maximum gap of 180
days between two Board Meetings.

The Company informed the stock exchange
about the appointment of Whole Time
Company Secretary however the Stock
Exchange will take the same on record upon
payment of penalty levied by the stock
exchange.

The company will take necessary steps to
update website as per the requirements of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The delays have happened due to covid-19
disruption. The Company will take all
necessary steps to file the necessary filings
within due date.

The Company will take necessary steps to
comply with the same.

The Company is taking requisite action to
resolve all the non-compliances with stock
exchange and ensure the script is shifted back
to normal trading terminal.

Due to Covid-19, Company was unable to
finalize the Financial results due to which there
was delay in conveying Annual General
Meeting which was held on 5th may, 2021.
The Company assures that the AGM will be
held within due date in future.
The Company is in the process of filing Form
MGT-7  and will comply the same in due
course.
The Directors of the company were tested positive
with covid-19 and hence could not hold board
meeting within due date. The Company will take
necessary steps to avoid the delay in future.
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General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

a)       Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

c) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any
remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries.

d) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

e) During the year under review, there were no cases filed or reported pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Acknowledgement

The Directors wish to take this opportunity to express their sincere thanks to the Company’s Bankers
for their valuable support and the Shareholders for their unflinching confidence in the Company.

Corporate Governance:

A detailed report on Corporate Governance forms part of this Annual Report. The Auditors’ Certificate
on compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company is attached to the Report
on Corporate Governance.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
SUNNY GANDHI SHRUTI GANDHI

Wholetime Director Director
DIN No. 00695322 DIN No.06947535

Place: Mumbai,
Dated: 4th September, 2021



SUNRAJ DIAMOND EXPORTS LTD.

20

ANNEXURE-II

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

I. Details of Remuneration of employees as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer during the financial year 2020-21, ratio of the remuneration of each Director
to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2020-21
are as under:

Sr. Name of Director/KMP and Designation Remuneration of % increase in
No. Director/ KMP Remunerationin

for financial year the financial year
2020-2021 2020-2021

1 Mr. Sunny Gandhi (Whole Time Director) Nil Nil

(ii) The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2020-21 was
Rs. 1,57,500

(iii) In the financial year 2020-21, there was a decrease of 30.92% in the median remuneration of
employees.

(iv) There were 9 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2021.

(v) Average percentage decrease made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the financial year 2020-21 is 12.49% whereas the decrease in the managerial
remuneration for the same financial year was 100%

(vi) The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors:

There is no variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors.

(vii) It is hereby affirmed that no remuneration was paid to the Whole Time Director of the Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2021.
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II. Details of Remuneration of Top 10 Employees as per Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and amendments thereof.

Sr       Employee Name Designation Educa- Age Experi- Date
No tion ence of Joining

(In

 Years)

1 Ms. Yogita Pednekar Accountant B.com 43 12 20/07/2009 3,67,500 NIL

2 Mr. Bhavya Doshi Accountant B.com 26 2 02/01/2020 3,67,500 NIL

3 Mr. Suresh Mali Administrative Staff HSC 45 13 31/07/2008 3,61,000 NIL

4 Mr. Anshul Garg Compliance Officer C.S. 33 3 01/05/2019 2,62,500 NIL

5 Mr. Subhash Malekar Administrative Staff SSC 47 12 16/06/2009 1,57,500 NIL

6 Mr. Satyawan Shirsat Administrative Staff SSC 50 13 31/07/2008 1,15,000 NIL

7 Mr. Mahesh Anant Jadhav Administrative Staff SSC 39 12 01/06/2008 1,14,000 NIL

8 Mr. Tushar Ghegad Administrative Staff HSC 32 10 01/04/2011 87,000 NIL

9 Mr. Madhukar Rane Administrative Staff SSC 28 7 01/04/2013 70,500 NIL

Gross
Remunera-
tion p.a.

(Paid in Rs)

Previous
Employ-

ment
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ANNEXURE - II

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel]

To,

The Members,

Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited. (Hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conduct / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of  the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also  the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that
in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period comprising the Company’s financial year
ended on 31st March, 2021 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited for the Company’s financial year ended on 31st March, 2021
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI ACT’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992 and 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 – Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period;
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 – Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 – Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 –
Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

As per information provided by the management, there are no laws specifically applicable to the
Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to us and the
representations made by the Management, the Company has generally complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following
qualifications:

a) The Company has not transferred Unclaimed Dividend for the financial years 2011-2012and
2012 – 2013 to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) as per the provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

b) The Company has not transferred the Shares on which Dividend has not been claimed for 7
consecutive years as per the provisions of Sections 124 & 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 6 of the IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016.

c) The Company has not filed Form MR – 1 pertaining to re-appointment of Whole- time Director
and remuneration payable to him as required by Rule 3 of The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

d) The Company appointed a Whole-time Company Secretary with effect from 7th May, 2019 as
required under Section 203 of the Act however the same was not informed to Stock exchange
within due date and as the Company is yet to clear penalty amount levied by the Stock Exchange,
the appointment of Whole-time Company Secretary is yet not taken on record by the Stock
Exchange.

e) Information to be provided on the Company’s website has not been updated as per the
requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

f) The Company has done necessary compliance with stock exchange as required under SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, with few delays under following regulations:

· Regulation 31- Shareholding Pattern.

· Regulation 33- Financial Results.

· Regulation 27(2)- Corporate Governance.

· Regulation 55A- Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit.
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· Regulation 47- Newspaper Publication of Financial results.

· Regulation 29- Intimation of Notice of Board Meeting

g) The Company has not submitted the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the year ended
31st March, 2020 in terms of SEBI Circular bearing reference CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated
8th February, 2019.

h) BSE has given notice to the Company that the Company’s scripts have been shifted to “Z / ZP
/ ZY” group with effect from 28th May, 2019, due to non-compliance with Regulation 27 (2) of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The BSE has levied various penalties on the Company which
Company is yet to settle with the BSE.

i) The Annual General Meeting for the year ended 31st March 2020, has not been held within the
time prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

j) The Company has yet not filed Form MGT-7 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020.

k) The Company exceeded maximum gap of 180 days between two Board Meetings.

I Further Report that during the year under review

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors and Woman Director. There was no change in
the constitution of the Board of Directors of the Company, during the year under review.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

I further report that the systems and processes in the Company are inadequate to commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken any event/action
having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., except for shifting its registered office within the local limits
of the city of Mumbai.

FOR KIRAN DOSHI & CO
Company Secretaries

KIRAN P. DOSHI
(Proprietor)

CP. No. : 9890
ACS No.: 23985

UDIN No.: A023985C000923125
Place: Mumbai
Date: 8th September, 2021

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed to this report as
Annexure – 1 and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure I

To

The Members,

SUNRAJ DIAMOND EXPORTS LIMITED

616 Prasad Chambers, 6th Floor

Plot CS 1487 Tata Road, 2, Roxy Cinema,

Opera House, Girgaon, Mumbai-400 004.

1. Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. Maintenance of secretarial record is

the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe

that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification

of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.

FOR KIRAN DOSHI & CO

Company Secretaries

KIRAN P. DOSHI

(Proprietor)

CP. No. : 9890

ACS No.: 23985

UDIN No.: A023985C000923125

Place: Mumbai

Date: 8th September, 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A) Industry Structure and Development:

The industry during the year 2020 – 2021 was extremely volatile due to the pandemic. The
prices of Raw Materials and Finished products fell initially, followed by a bull run throughout
the year as business started picking up in most major markets across the world. The offloading
of old stock with the dearth of Raw Materials was the major cause of the price rise. Manufacturing
activity came to a halt and production shortages caused a volatile and speculative price
movement. Further relaxations introduced by the RBI with regards to Industry boosting
initiatives, the recovery was smooth, and the industry is poised for further consolidation and
stabilizing of prices in the current financial year.

B) Opportunities and Threats

The recovery of availability of Raw materials and finished products will see plenty of trading
opportunities throughout the financial year, as well as stability in the prices of Polished Diamonds.
The demand for Jewellery has picked up and made the business quite profitable. Currency
remaining stable will be another factor contributing to the healthy business atmosphere. The
rise of the Lab Grown Diamond Market is a cheaper alternative to expensive diamonds.

COVID still remains the central threat to the industry. The revival of the small – medium players
will continue to be a hugely critical area. With global markets still far from their pre COVID
levels, the demand for Polished diamonds and Jewellery may take some time to reach the peak,
putting downward pressure on the Diamond Industry.

C) Segment-wise Performance

The Company currently has only one business segment viz. trading in cut and polished diamonds
and hence product-wise performance is not provided.

D) Outlook

The Indian Diamond Industry is now dealing with the existence of Lab Grown CVD Diamonds.
Both natural and CVD diamonds will co – exist simultaneously. This will continue to be a short-
term challenge for the trade. The prices of raw materials for natural diamonds are now rising
and will continue to do so. We expect 2021 – 2022 to be a year where there is growth, and a
healthier and leaner business model being created.

E) Risk and Concerns

The Company identifies tougher banking regulations and liquidity issues as the major risks to
conduct business post the COVID pandemic.

F) Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has a satisfactory internal control system, the adequacy of which has b e e n
mentioned in the Auditors’ Report.

G) Human Resources

There has been no material development on the Human Resource / Industrial relations front
during the year.



31st Annual Report 2020-2021

27

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 on the compliance by the Company with the

Corporate Governance requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Listing

Regulations’), is furnished below.

1. Company’s Philosophy on code of Corporate Governance:

The Company believes that to be an effective business entity the organization has to recognize

its responsibilities to the stakeholders and should be guided by the principles of just and

efficient governance for mutual benefit. The Company’s corporate philosophy imbibes the ideal

of this principle and accordingly has endeavored to carry out all its operations in a transparent

and fair manner.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Directors have confirmed compliance with

the code of conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

In compliance with Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, all members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management.

The relevant standards of Corporate Governance have been fully complied with by the Company.

2. Board of Directors:

Composition and size of the Board

The present strength of the Board is 4 out of which 3 are Non-executive Directors (more than

two thirds of the total Board strength) and among these 1 is Executive Director, and 2 are

Independent Directors.

The size and composition of the Board conforms to the requirements of Section 149 of the

Companies, Act, 2013. The provisions of Regulations 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosures Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”) do not apply to the Company.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company do not have any other material or

pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, its promoters, or its management,

which in the judgment of the Board may affect independence of judgment of the Directors. Non-

Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration.

Mr. Sunny Gandhi, Whole time Director is the husband of Mrs. Shruti Gandhi, Director.

In the financial year 2020 – 2021, the Board met Four times. The Board Meetings were held on

(1) 23rd September, 2020, (2) 30th September, 2020, (3) 27th November, 2020, (4) 15th February,

2021.

The composition of Board of Directors and their attendance at the Board Meetings during the
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year and at the last Annual General Meeting as also number of other directorship, committee
memberships and chairmanships held by them, are given below:

Mr. Sunny Promoter 1320800 Sunraj Investments Nil 2 4 4 Yes
Gandhi ED & Finance Pvt.Ltd.

Mr. Pravin Independent Nil Nil Nil 3 4 4 Yes
Shah Director

Mrs. Shruti Women Nil Nil 1 1 4 4 Yes
Gandhi DirectorNED

Mr. Shivil Independent Nil Nil 2 Nil 4 4 No
Kapoor Director

As provided under Regulation 25/26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Independent
Directors on Board acts as an Independent Director in more than seven listed entities, none of
the Wholetime /Executive Directors on Board acts as Independent Director in more than three
listed entities, none of the Directors are members in more than ten committees or acts as
Chairman of more than five such committees.

Meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors met once during the Financial Year 2020-21, without the presence
of Executive Directors or Management Representatives. The issues and concerns, if any, of the
meeting were then discussed with the Chairman

3 Audit Committee:

The present composition of the Audit Committee is as under:

Member Position No. of Meetings attended

Mr. Shivil Kapoor Chairman 4

Mr. Pravin Shah Member 4

Mr. Sunny Gandhi Member 4

The above composition duly meets the requirements as per Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. The provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 do not apply to the Company. The Audit Committee acts as a
link between the management, external and internal Auditors and the Board of Directors.

The functions of the Audit Committee are as per Company Law. These include review of
accounting and financial policies and procedure, review of financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management policies.

Name of the
Directors

Status i.e.
Executive,

Non-Executive
and

Independent

Shares
Held

Members of Boards
of Other  Companies

Total Number
of Committee
Membership

held

Number of
Board

Meeting held
during the

year

Whether
attended

last
Annual
General
Meeting

As
Chair-
man

As
Mem-
ber

Held At-
tended
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The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year 2020-21, on the following dates
namely, (1) 23rd September, 2020, (2) 30th September, 2020, (3) 27th November, 2020, (4) 15th

February, 2021. and the frequency was as prescribed under applicable regulatory requirements
and the gap between two Committee Meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty
days.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company have constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee.”
The provisions of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 do not apply to the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee acts in accordance with the prescribed provisions
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as approved by the Board of Directors are briefly set out below:

· To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommended to the Board
for their appointment and removal;

· To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

· To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board and to carry
out evaluation of every director’s performance; and

· To devise a policy on Board diversity.

During the year under review the following Directors were the Members of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Member Position No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended

Shivil Kapoor Chairman 1 1

Pravin Shah Member 1 1

Shruti Gandhi Member 1 1

The Company also has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

The Company has also devised a familiarization program for the Independent Directors to help
them understand the Company, its management, roles and responsibilities in the Company,
operations of the Company etc.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once during the financial year 2020-21, on
15th February, 2021.

The details of remuneration paid to Directors/ Executive Directors for the financial year ended
31st March, 2021 are set out below:

The Independent Directors are paid only sitting fees for attending Board Meetings. The details
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of sitting fees paid to Independent Directors during the year under review are as under:

Non-Executive Directors

Name Sitting Fees Paid

Mr. Shivil Kapoor 4000

Mrs. Shruti Gandhi NIL

Mr. Pravin Shah 4000

Total 8000

Wholetime/ Executive Directors

Name Salary

Mr. Sunny Gandhi NIL

Total NIL

The Company has not issued any stock options.

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee has been constituted to consider and resolve the
grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer of
shares, non-receipt of annual report etc.

During the year under review the following Directors were the Members of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee.

Member Position No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended

Shruti Gandhi Chairperson 4 4

Pravin Shah Member 4 4

Sunny Gandhi Member 4 4

Stakeholders Relationship Committee met four times during the financial year 2020-21, on the
following dates namely, (1) 23rd September, 2020, (2) 30th September, 2020, (3) 27th November,
2020, (4) 15th February, 2021 and the frequency was as prescribed under applicable regulatory
requirements and the gap between two Committee Meetings was not more than one hundred
and twenty days.

During the financial year there were following complaints received from the shareholders.

The Particulars of Investors, grievances received and redressed during the year are furnished
below:

Sr. Nature of Complaints No. of Complaints

NO. Received Resolved Pending as on
31/03/2021

1) Non receipt of Annual Report NIL NIL NIL

2) Complaints relating to Dematerialization of Shares NIL NIL NIL

3) Non – receipt of Shares certificates After transfer/
duplicate / Name correction NIL NIL NIL

4) Others NIL NIL NIL

TOTAL NIL NIL NIL
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6. General Body Meetings

The details of Annual General Meetings held during last three years are as under:-

Financial Year Day and Date Location Time

2019-2020 Wednesday Video Conferencing/

05/05/2021 Audio Visual Means 11.00 a.m.

2018-2019 Monday Seva Sadan Hall, Pandita Ramabai

30/09/2019 Road, Gamdevi. Mumbai – 400007. 3.00 p.m.

2017-2018 Friday Kshatriya Gnyati Sabha Gruha, 11.30 a.m.

28/09/2018 229, Raja Ram Mohan Roy Marg,

Girgaum, Mumbai – 400 004

Business

During the last year, there was no business, which had to be conducted through a postal ballot.
At present, the Company does not have any resolution to be decided by the members by postal
ballot.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED:

1. In 2017– 2018 AGM: No Special Resolution passed

2. In 2018– 2019 AGM: Special Resolution pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197 and
any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder,
read with Schedule V to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the company,
be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Sunny Gandhi as a Whole-time Director for a
term of 3 years commencing from 1stOctober, 2019 were passed at the AGM held on
30thSeptember, 2019.

3. In 2019– 2020 AGM: No Special Resolution passed

7. Disclosures

1. Related Party Transactions

There are related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company with its Promoters,
Directors or Management, their associate companies or relatives, not conflicting with
Company’s interest, the details of which have been shown in Note No. 30 of Financial
Statements, Notes forming part of the Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021

The Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with the promoters,
directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The register of contracts containing
transactions, in which directors are interested, is placed before the board regularity.

2. Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down two separate Codes of Conduct –
one for Directors and other for Senior Management and Employees.

All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code of conduct for the year under review. A Declaration signed by CFO / Director to this
effect is annexed to this report.
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3. CEO/CFO Certification

As required under Regulation 17(8), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the CFO has given a certificate to the Board in the
prescribed format for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

4. Risk Management

The Audit Committee and the Board periodically discuss the significant business risks
identified by the Management and review the measures taken for their mitigation.

5. Statutory Compliance, Penalties and strictures

The Company has complied with all the requirements of regulatory authorities on matters
relating to capital markets and no penalties/ strictures have been imposed on the Company
by the Stock Exchange or SEBI.

6. Whistle Blower Policy

The Company encourages and opens door policy where employees have access to the
Head of the Business/Function. In terms of Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited’s Code of
Conduct, any instance of non-adherence to the code of any other observed/ unethical
behavior is to be brought to the attention of the immediate reporting authority, who is
required to report the same to the appropriate person.

7. Means of Communication

The Company files its financial results with the Stock Exchanges immediately after its
approval by the Board. The Company is not displaying the financial results on website.
The Company has not sent the half yearly report to the Shareholders. No presentations
were made to the institutional investors or analysts during the year under review.

8. General Shareholder Information

a. AGM Day, Date, Time Thursday, 30th September, 2021, at 11.30  a.m.

Venue Video Conferencing/ Audio Visual Means

b. Financial Calendar The Board of Directors of the Company approves
the unaudited results for each quarter within
such number of days as may prescribed under
the Listing Regulations from time to time except
in few cases.

c. Book Closure Period 24th September, 2021, - 30th  September, 2021

f) Listing on stock Exchanges at:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy
Tower, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001.

g) Stock/Company/Security/Common Code:

BSE Limited

Code: 523425

h) Demat ISIN No. for Depositories: INE459D01014
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i) Market Price Data:

High/Low of the Company’s Shares traded in the BSE Limited, during the financial year
2020- 2021 is furnished below:

Month & year Company’s Share Price

Months High Low

April 2020 N.T N.T

May 2020 5.32 5.32

June 2020 N.T N.T

July 2020 N.T N.T

August 2020 5.06 5.06

September 2020 N.T N.T

October 2020 5.06 3.89

November 2020 3.70 3.20

December 2020 3.18 2.77

January 2021 2.90 2.09

February 2021 2.00 1.50

March 2021 1.81 1.57

j) Registrar and Transfer Agents

In compliance with the SEBI Directive for all listed Companies to have a common agency
to handle physical and electronic share registry work the Company has appointed M/s
Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd as the Registrar and Transfer Agents. Accordingly all
documents, transfer deeds, demat requests and other communications in relation thereto
should be addressed to the R & T at it’s offices 18-20, Jaferbhoy Ind. Estate, 1st Floor,
Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri - (East), Mumbai – 400 059.

Share transfers are registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of
receipt, if the documents are clear in all respects. Officers of the Registrars and Transfer
Agents have been authorized to approve transfers in addition to the officers of the Company.

Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2021.

Sr. No. Holders No. of Shares  Held % of Total

A Promoters Holding 1915005 35.93

B Non-Institutional Investors 0 0

a Bodies Corporate 62945 1.18

b Indian Public 3312487 62.14

c NRl’s 25118 0.47

d Others 14845 0.28

Total   53,30,400 100.00



SUNRAJ DIAMOND EXPORTS LTD.

34

Broad Shareholding Distribution as on 31st March, 2021.

No. of Shares No of Holders %to total No. of Share % to total

1 to 500 8310 94.34 1219194 22.87

501 to 1000 286 3.25 234598 4.40

1001 to 2000 99 1.12 147446 2.77

2001 to 3000 36 0.41 89465 1.68

3001 to 4000 14 0.16 51907 0.97

4001 to 5000 18 0.20 82318 1.54

5001 To 10000 16 0.18 108875 2.04

10001 and above 30 0.33 3396597 63.72

8809 100.00 53,30,400 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

As on 31st March, 2021, 76.48% of the Company’s total shares representing
40,76,669 shares were held in dematerialized form.

Investor’s Correspondence:

All inquiries, clarifications and correspondence should be addressed to the Compliance
Officer at the following address:

Compliance Officer : Mr. Anshul Garg
616 Prasad Chambers,6th Floor, Plot CS 1487 Tata Road,
2, Roxy Cinema, Opera House, Girgaon, Mumbai-400 004.

10. COMPLIANCE OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

1) Chairman of the Board

The Company does not have a permanent Chairman. At every Board Meeting, a Director is
elected as Chairman to preside over the meeting.  Hence, there is no separate office in the
Company for the post of Chairman.

2) Shareholders Rights

Half yearly results including summary of the significant events are not being sent to
Shareholders of the Company.

3) Postal Ballot

No resolutions are being proposed to be passed by Postal Ballot

4) Audit Qualification.

Audit Qualifications as detailed in Statutory Auditor’s Report are self explanatory.

Sd/- Sd/-

SUNNY GANDHI   SHRUTI GANDHI
Wholetime Director Director
DIN No. 00695322 DINNo.06947535

Place: Mumbai
Dated:.4th September, 2021
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Declaration on Code of Conduct

The Declaration for Code of Conduct in compliance with Regulation 26 and Schedule V of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015 is given below.

To,

The Members of

Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited

I Mr. Sunny Gandhi, Wholetime Director of the Company, hereby confirm that, all Board Members

and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and

Ethics for Directors and Senior Management of the Company in respect of the financial year 2020-

2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

SUNNY GANDHI

Wholetime Director

DIN No. 00695322

Place   :  Mumbai

Dated  :  4th September, 2021
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To

The Members of

SUNRAJ DIAMOND EXPORTS LIMITED.

We have examined the conditions of Corporate Governance by Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited for

the year ended 31st March, 2021 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company

with the relevant Stock Exchange.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.

Our examination was limited to a review of the procedure and implementation thereof adopted by the

Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an

audit nor an expression of the opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we

certify that the composition of the Board of Directors is duly constituted as stipulated in the

abovementioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

For Govind Prasad & Co

Chartered Accountants,

FRN NO: 114360W

Sd/-

Govind Prasad

Partner

Membership No 047948

UDIN: 21047948AAAADA7889

Place :Mumbai

Date: 8th September, 2021
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ANNEXURE A

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Sl. Particulars Details

No.

1 Name of the subsidiary Sunraj Diamond DMCC - - -

2 Reporting period for the April – March - - -

subsidiary concerned, if different

from the holding company’s

reporting period

3 Reporting currency and Exchange (USD) - - -

rate as on the last date of the

relevant Financial year in the case

of foreign subsidiaries

4 Share capital 1,08,960 - - -

5 Reserves & surplus (178,497) - - -

6 Total assets 3,435 - - -

7 Total Liabilities 3,435 - - -

8 Investments 0 - - -

9 Turnover 0 - - -

10 Profit before taxation (185,061) - - -

11 Provision for taxation 0 - - -

12 Profit after taxation (185,061) - - -

13 Proposed Dividend 0 - - -

14 % of shareholding 100.00% - - -

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures -

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date -

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end -

No. -

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture -

Extend of Holding% -

Description of how there is significant influence -

Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated -

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet -

Profit/Loss for the year -

Considered in Consolidation -

Not Considered in Consolidation -

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

SUNNY GANDHI SHRUTI GANDHI

Wholetime Director Director

DIN No. 00695322 DIN No.06947535

Place: Mumbai,

Dated: 4th September, 2021
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ANNEXURE – B

FORM AOC – 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company

with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis – NOT APPLICABLE

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under

first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis -

2.1

a. Name of the related party and K. D. Shah Investments

nature of relationship Private Limited

Enterprise under significant

influence of key management

personnel (Enterprise)

b. Nature, duration of the contract and particulars Purchase of Fixed Asset

of the contract or arrangement

c. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements Purchase of Fixed Asset-

or transactions including the value, if any: amounting to Rs. 34,618/-

d. Date of approval (s) by the Board, if any 30th June, 2021
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2.2

a. Name of the related party and nature K. D. Shah Investments

of relationship Private Limited

Enterprise under significant

influence of key management

personnel (Enterprise)

b. Nature, duration of the contract and particulars Commission

of the contract or arrangement

c. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements Commission amounting

or transactions including the value, if any: Rs.6,90,000/-

d. Date of approval (s) by the Board, if any 30th June, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

SUNNY GANDHI SHRUTI GANDHI

Wholetime Director Director

DIN No. 00695322 DIN No.06947535

Place: Mumbai,

Dated: 4th September, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of

Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited

I. Report on the audit of the standalone financial statements

1. Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Sunraj Diamond Exports
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to financial statement,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report,
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. As per the note no. 31: Employee Benefits, the company has not made the provision of
employee cost with reference to the retirement benefits of the employees.

2. The company has delayed in transferring the amount to Investors Education Protection
Fund Account as required by the section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of delay
is available under II(H)(iii) of the audit report.

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in
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forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have not determined any key audit matters which needs specific mention.

4. Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Standalone
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so. The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
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detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial
Statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

II. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

A. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account

D. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014

E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

G. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:In our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.
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H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have pending litigations having impact on its financial position
in its Standalone Financial Statements

ii) The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts

iii) The company has delayed in transferring of dividend to Investor Education Protection
Fund as under:

Financial Year Amount Due date of payment Date of payment

2010-11 6,22,518 19th October, 2018 24th August, 2020

2011-12 6,48,107 17th October, 2019 Not yet transferred

2012-13 6,52,199 19th October, 2020 Not yet transferred

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Govind Prasad and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Signature
Govind Prasad

Partner
M. No.: 047948

UDIN: 21047948AAAACF3854
Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th June 2021
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited for

the year ended 31st March, 2021.

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report

that:

1. (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) The Company has physically verified certain assets during the period in accord with a

programme of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of the

fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given

to no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion fixed assets

have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us in our

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the title deed of

the immovable properties, including property, plant and equipment of the company are

held in the name of the company.

2. In respect of its inventories, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the inventory and

no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verifications.

3. The company has not granted loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

4. The company has not advanced any loan, has not made any investment, has not provided any

guaranty and has not provided any security thus reporting under this section is not applicable.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has

not accepted deposits from the public as per section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7 (a) The company is irregular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident

fund, Employee’s state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, duty of

customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the

appropriate authorities.

(b) Dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value

added tax or goods and service tax have been deposited on time there is no dispute pending

on the part of company.
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Statute of under which Financial Amount Authority before

dispute is pending Year  which pending

Income Tax Act 1961 2012-13 50,64,570 Commissioner of

Income Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act 1961 2013-14 23,69,640 Commissioner of

Income Tax (Appeals)

8. The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings.

9. The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments), thus this clause is not applicable

10. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations

given to us, no fraud on or by the Company was noticed or reported during the period.

11. No managerial remuneration is paid during the year and hence this clause is not applicable

12. Company is not a Nidhi Company, thus this close is not applicable

13. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of

Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial

Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards;

14. The company hasn’t made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or

partly convertible debentures during the year, thus this clause is not applicable

15. The company hasn’t entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected

with him, thus this clause is not applicable

16. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934, thus this clause is not applicable

For Govind Prasad and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Signature
Govind Prasad

Partner
M. No.: 047948

UDIN: 21047948AAAACF3854
Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th June 2021
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sunraj Diamond Exports
Limited (“The Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Govind Prasad and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Signature
Govind Prasad

Partner
M. No.: 047948

UDIN: 21047948AAAACF3854
Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th June 2021
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ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 501,171 558,037
Intangible Assets 3 18,052 4,480
Financial Assets
      Investments 4 5,967,100 5,967,100
      Other Financial Assets 5 469,800 369,800
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 490,499 504,818

7,446,622 7,404,235
Current Assets
Inventories 3,336,996 2,666,962
Financial Assets
      Trade Receivables 7 154,208,874 160,368,649
      Cash and Cash Equivalents 8A 540,602 211,152
      Other Balance with Banks 8B 1,300,306 1,908,028
      Loans 9 17,000 53,000
Other Current Assets 10 1,902,751 2,961,842

161,306,528 168,169,633
TOTAL ASSETS 168,753,151 175,573,869
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 11A 53,304,000 53,304,000
Other Equity 11B (42,226,083) (29,124,177)

11,077,917 24,179,823
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
       Borrowings 12 265,255 555,627

265,255 555,627
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
       Borrowings 13 139,546,221 125,845,264
       Trade Payables 14
             Due to Micro and Small Enterprises -                                   -
             Due to Others 15,756,038 21,840,305
       Other Financial Liabilities 15 2,026,095 2,439,649
Other Current Liabilities 16 81,625 713,200

157,409,979 150,838,419
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 168,753,151 175,573,869
Significant Accounting Policies and key
accounting estimates and judgements 1
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS NOTES As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations 17 12,411,960           7,759,768
Other Income 18 5,276          13,506,002

TOTAL INCOME (I) 12,417,236        21,265,770

EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock in Trade 19 7,438,794           4,699,995
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods & Raw Material 20 (670,034)           2,385,942
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 1,892,759           3,905,808
Finance Cost22 8,933,175           6,977,193
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 23 37,695              338,532
Other Expenses 24 7,176,172           4,842,422

TOTAL (II) 24,808,561        23,149,892

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (12,391,324)        (1,884,122)
Tax Expenses 25
       Current Tax -                       -
       Deferred Tax 14,319              319,889
       Tax in respect of earlier years 696,262              216,489

710,581             536,378

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX      (13,101,906)        (2,420,500)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -                       -
Items that will  be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss -                       -
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME                       -                       -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR      (13,101,906)        (2,420,500)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of 10 each) 31
1) Basic (in Rs.)                  (2.46)                  (0.45)
2) Diluted (in Rs.)                  (2.46)                  (0.45)

Significant Accounting Policies and
key accounting estimates and judgements 1
Notes are an integral part of the financial statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31ST MARCH 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS NOTES Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before tax (12,391,324)            (1,913,014)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and Amortisation & Exceptional items 37,695                329,408
Loss on sale of asset 49,543                         -
Exchange rate difference 3,777,798                         -
Finance Costs 8,933,175             6,977,193
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 406,886           5,393,587
Adjustment for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 2,534,735            (8,750,181)
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets (64,000)                232,000
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (670,034)             2,423,958
(Increase) / Decrease in Other assets 362,829             1,985,293
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other payables (6,174,088)               (986,379)
Cash generated from Operations activities (3,603,672)               298,280
         Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (189,161)               (216,489)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (3,792,833)                 81,791

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property, Plant and equipment (52,418)               (108,771)
Sale of Property, Plant and equipment 8,474
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (43,944)             (108,771)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings (net of borrowings repaid) 13,099,404             6,638,917
Finance Cost (8,933,175)            (6,977,193)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) 4,166,229             (338,276)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & EQUIVALENTS 329,450             (365,257)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 211,152                576,409
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 540,602               211,152

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind-As-7)- Statement of Cash Flow

(b) PARTICULAR  As at  As at
31st March,2021  31st March,2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of
Balance with Banks:
            -Current Accounts 434,871                112,640
Cash on hand 105,730                  98,512
Cash and Cash Equivalent in Cash Flow Statement 540,602               211,152

 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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Balance at the beginning of the Reporting period 53,304,000 53,304,000

Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the reporting period 53,304,000 53,304,000

B : OTHER EQUITY Amount (In Rs.)

OTHER EQUITY Reserves & Surplus  Total

Capital General Retained

Reserve Reserve Earning

Balance as at 01st April 2019 (A) 598,000 569,718 (21,947,047) (20,779,329)

Addition during the year:

Profit/(Loss) for the period - (2,420,500) (2,420,500)

Items of OCI for the year, net of tax- - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the

period ended 31st March 2020(B) - - (2,420,500) (2,420,500)

Reductions during the year - - - -

Total (C) - - - -

Balance as at 31st March 2020 (

D)=(A+B+C) 598,000 569,718 (24,367,547) (23,199,829)

Addition during the year:

Profit/(Loss) for the period - - (13,101,906) (13,101,906)

Items of OCI for the year, net of tax- - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the

period ended 31/03/2021 (E) - - (13,101,906) (13,101,906)

Reductions during the year - - - -

Total (F) - - - -

Balance as at 31st March 2021

(G)=(D+E+F) 598,000 569,718 (37,469,452) (36,301,734)

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2021
A : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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Notes To The Financial Statements For The Year Ended 31st March, 2021

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Sunraj Diamonds exports limited is a public limited company has been incorporated under the

provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed in BSE Stock Exchange. The Company is

engaged in the business of manufacturing, trading and exporting of gold jewellery, cut and polished

diamond and silver items.

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under Section 133 of Companies

Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the functional and

reporting currency. Recognition and Measurement of foreign transction have been disclosed in

note 3(t.) below.

c. Basis of Measurement

The company financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

d. Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these   financial statements in conformity with the recognition and

measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating

to contingent liabilities as at the date of the   financial statements and the reported amounts of

income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods

are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the   financial statements, which may

cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, is in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant and

equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets.

i) Impairment of investments

The company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually,

or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is

less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.
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ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each

reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in

future periods.

iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets

The company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting

period.

e. Measurement of Fair Values

The company has established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If

third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair

values, then the company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the

conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in fair

value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s Board of Directors.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs

used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company uses observable market

data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall

into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised

in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is

significant to the entire measurement.

The company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the

reporting period during which the change has occurred.

f. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods

or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is

expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.
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Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of

transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The

transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account

of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable

consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable

consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not

be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

i) Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been

transferred to the customer. The performance obligation in case of sale of product is

satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery

to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

ii) Interest Income

Interest income on deposits, securities and loans is recognised at the agreed rate on time

proportionate basis.

iii) Dividend income:

Dividend income on investments is recognised as and when received.

g. Earning per Share :

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable

to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit

attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustment for diluted earnings) by average number

of weighted equity shares outstanding during the year plus potential equity shares.

h. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when

there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an

outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the accounts

by way of a note. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the   financial

statements.

i. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits

with banks and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to know

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where

original maturity is three months or less.

j. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before tax is adjusted for

the effect of the transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future
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operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing

or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the

Company are segregated.

k Property, Plant And Equipment

i) Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised

borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if

any, except freehold land which is carried at historical cost.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including

import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and

rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its

intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the

site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of

materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to

working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing

the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,

the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,

when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the

plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other

repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Useful lives have been determined in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act,

2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Capital Work-in-progress includes cost of assets at sites and constructions expenditure.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined

by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and

equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of

profit and loss.

ii) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits

associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii) Depreciation/Amortisation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other than

freehold land and properties under construction) less their estimated residual values over

their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally recognised in
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the statement of profit and loss. Amortization on leasehold land is provided over the period

of lease.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-

end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice,

the management believes that its estimates of useful lives best represent the period over

which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation

are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the

date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

v) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is

derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its

use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is

included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

l. Recognition of Dividend Income, Interest Income

Dividend on financial instruments is recognized as and when realized. Interest is recognized on

accrual basis.

m. Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the

extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in

other comprehensive income.

i) Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or

loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous

years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to

be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is

measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable

right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle

the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
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used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward

tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax

losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case

of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the

extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other

evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax

asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and

are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively

that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when

the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to

offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same

tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend

to settle current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will

be realised simultaneously.

n. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,

intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The Company

currently does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful life. Intangible assets are

amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the

amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting

period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future

economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or

method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation

expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such

expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in

the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

o. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap and by products

which are valued at net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present

location and condition are accounted for as follows:

i) Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average

basis.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour

and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity,

but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

1 Financial assets

i) Classification

º%A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions

and is not designated as at Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL):

-  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

-  the contractual terms of a financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

º% A debt investment is measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive income

(FVOCI) if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

º% Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition except if

and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset when it becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instruments and measures at its fair value except trade
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receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs are

incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed

in profit or loss. A regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at

trade date.

iii) Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net

gains including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost :-These assets are subsequently measured at amortized

cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment

losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized

in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognized in profit or loss.

iv) Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows

from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash

flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of

the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the

financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its

balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the

transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

2 Financial Liabilities

i) Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial

liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative

or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured

at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in

profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost

using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and

losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized

in profit or loss.

ii) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are

discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability

when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially

different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
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at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability

extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the profit

or loss.

iii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount presented in the

Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable

right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

q. Impairment

i) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt

instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits

and trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance

on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company

to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since

initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to

provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime

ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such

that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the

Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over

the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime

ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting

date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.,

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as

income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the

head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation

for various financial instruments is described below:
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º%Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,

as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. the allowance

reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company

does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount

º%Debt instruments measured at FVTPL: Since financial assets are already reflected at

fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. The change in fair

value is taken to the statement of Profit and Loss.

º%Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at

fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount

is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial

instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating

an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified

on a timely basis.

ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the

asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the

Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has

decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change

in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only

to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that

would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.

r. Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are

expensed as the related service is provided.

ii) Long term Employee Benefits:

Provident Fund and Superannuation Contribution are accrued each year in terms of

contracts with the employees. Provision for Gratuity is determined and accrued on the

basis of actuarial valuation. Leave encashment benefit to employees has been provided on

an estimated basis.
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s. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset

that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to

the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

t. Foreign currency transactions and foreign operations

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional

and presentation currency.

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are

recorded in the functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency

amount, the spot exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences

arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement

of Profit and Loss.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the

transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end

exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date

when the fair value is determined.
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NOTE 4 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Non Current Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments at Cost
Unquoted Equity Shares
Investment in Subsidiary

(100% Investments in Share Capital of Sunraj Diamond DMCC)                   5,952,100 5,952,100

Investment in other company

150 equity shares of Rander Peoples’ Co-op. Bank Limited of

Rs 100 each fully paid (31st March,2020 - 150 shares)                        15,000 15,000

Total Investments in Unquoted Equity Shares                  5,967,100 5,967,100

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments -At Cost                  5,967,100 5,967,100
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments                              -                          -

NOTE 5 : OTHER  FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits                     469,800 369,800

TOTAL Rs. 469,800 369,800

NOTE 6 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, plant and equipment - difference between value of

assets as per book base and tax base                     490,499 504,818

Total Deferred Tax Assets                   490,499 504,818

NOTE 7 : TRADE RECEIVABLES *
Secured, considered good                            - -

Unsecured, considered good               154,208,874 160,368,649

Unsecured, considered doubtful                            - -

154,208,874 160,368,649
Less: Allowances for unsecured doubtful debts                            - -
TOTAL Rs. 154,208,874 160,368,649

Note 7.1 The Company’s management is of the opinion that Trade Receivables from foreign customers are

considered the same as good and receivable and this amount is realizable,  hence no adjustments have

been made in the  financial statements because the management is confident of recovery of these receivables.

* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020



31st Annual Report 2020-2021

67

NOTE 8 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES *

(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) Balances with Banks

(i) Current Accounts                     434,871 112,640

(b) Cash on hand                     105,730 98,512

TOTAL Rs. 540,602 211,152

(B) Other Balances with Banks

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts                  1,300,306 1,908,028

TOTAL Rs. 1,300,306 1,908,028

* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 9 : Loans*

Loans to Employees 17,000 53,000

TOTAL Rs. 17,000 53,000

* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 10 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid  Expenses                     106,649 117,716

Balance with Statutory Authorities                  1,796,102 2,844,126

TOTAL Rs. 1,902,751 2,961,842

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020
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NOTE 11A : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
80,00,000 (P.Y. 80,00,00) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 80,000,000 80,000,000

80,000,000          80,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital
53,30,400 (P.Y. 53,30,400)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 53,304,000 53,304,000

         53,304,000          53,304,000

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
PARTICULARS As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
No. of Shares Amount In Rs. No. of Shares Amount In Rs.

At the beginning of the year        5,330,400       53,304,000             5,330,400            53,304,000
Add: Issued during the year                   -                   -                        -                        -
At the end of the year      5,330,400     53,304,000            5,330,400          53,304,000

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each Equity Shareholder
is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholders As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held Equity Shares

Sunny Sunil Gandhi        1,320,800 24.78%             1,320,800 24.78%
Gunvanti Chandrakant Gandhi           375,000 7.04%                375,000 7.04%

NOTE 11B : OTHER EQUITY
OTHER EQUITY Reservs & Surplus  Total

Capital General Retained
Reserve Reserve  Earning

Balance as at April 01, 2019 (A)           598,000           569,718 (27,842,503) (26,674,785)
Addition during the year:
Profit for the period                   - (2,449,392) (2,449,392)
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax-                   -                   - -                        -
Total Comprehensive Income for
the period ended 31/03/2020 (B)                  -                  - (2,449,392) (2,449,392)
Reductions during the year                   -                   - -                        -
Total (C)                  -                  - -                       -
Balance as at 31st March 2020
(D)=(A+B+C)         598,000          569,718 (30,291,895) (29,124,177)
Addition during the year:
Profit for the period                   -                   - (13,101,906) (13,101,906)
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax-                   -                   - -                        -
Total Comprehensive Income for
the period ended 31/03/2021 (E) -                  - (13,101,906) (13,101,906)
Reductions during the year                   -                   - -                        -
Total (F)                  -                  - -                       -
Balance as at 31st March 2021
(G)=(D+E+F) 598,000 569,718 (43,393,801) 42,226,083)

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020



31st Annual Report 2020-2021

69

NOTE 12 : NON CURRENT BORROWINGS *
Secured Loan
From Banks                     265,255 555,627
(Secured against Mercedes Benz)
TOTAL Rs. 265,255 555,627
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note no. 15)
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement 311,181 222,021

Note:
12.1 Vehicle Loan, balance outstanding amounting to Rs. 5.76 Lacs (P.Y. Rs 7.78) is secured by Hire

Purchase agreement for vehicles and repayable in 38 monthly installments.Last installment due
in December,2022.

12.2 Installments falling due in respect of all the above Loans up to 31/03/2021 have been grouped
under “Current maturities of long-term debt”.

12.3 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans & interest in current and previous year.

NOTE 13 : CURRENT BORROWINGS *
Unsecured Loan
From Directors               134,266,471 74,046,156
Inter Corporate Loans                  5,279,750 51,799,109
TOTAL Rs. 139,546,221 125,845,264
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 14 : TRADE PAYABLES *
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 29)                            - -
Due to others                15,756,038 21,840,305
TOTAL Rs. 15,756,038 21,840,305
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 15 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Refer Note 12)                     311,181 222,021
Provision for Employee Benefits                     232,300 295,600
Unclaimed Dividend*                  1,300,306 1,908,028
Provision for expenses                     132,308 14,000
Security Deposit                      50,000 -
TOTAL Rs. 2,026,095 2,439,649

* There is  an amount due and outstanding to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund as on 31st March 2021 for the Financial year 2011-12 & 2012-13 of Rs. RS.6,48,107 & 6,52,199
respectively.

NOTE 16 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory liabilities                      81,625 111,800
Other Payable                            - 26,400
Advances from Customers                            - 575,000
TOTAL Rs. 81,625 713,200

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

NOTE 17 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products                 7,367,672 7,759,768

Sale of services                 5,044,288                          -

TOTAL Rs. 12,411,960 7,759,768

NOTE 18 : OTHER INCOME
Net Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation                           - 13,063,751

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment                           - 309,020

Interest on IT Refund                           - 17,280

Balance Written -Off Income                           - 106,790
Discount Received                       5,276 9,161

TOTAL Rs. 5,276 13,506,002

NOTE 19 :COST OF TRADED GOODS
Purchase of Stock in Trade                 7,438,794 4,699,851

Direct Expenses                           - 144
TOTAL Rs. 7,438,794 4,699,995

NOTE 20 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF
FINISHED GOODS & RAW MATERIAL
Inventories at the end of the year

       Finished Goods                 3,336,996 2,628,946
       Raw Material                           - 38,016

3,336,996 2,666,962
Inventories at the beginning of the year

       Finished Goods                 2,628,946 5,052,904

       Raw Material                     38,016 38,016

Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods & Raw Material                (670,034) 2,385,942

NOTE 21 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and bonus                 1,887,700 3,230,900

Director Remuneration                           - 650,000

Staff Welfare Expenses                       5,059 24,908

TOTAL Rs. 1,892,759 3,905,808

NOTE 22 : FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expenses                 8,907,554 6,942,352

Other Finance cost                     25,621 34,841

TOTAL Rs. 8,933,175 6,977,193
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

NOTE 23 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments                     37,695 338,532

TOTAL Rs. 37,695 338,532

NOTE 24 : OTHER EXPENSES

Audit Fees 215,000 250,000

Commission                   690,000                          -

Loss on sale of asset                     49,543                          -

Exchange gain difference                 3,777,798                          -

Legal & Professional Fees                   430,977 722,746

Conveyance Expenses                     37,378 10,825

Rent Charges                   978,000 1,649,500

Repair and Maintenance                   171,966 94,986

Telephone Expenses                       8,558 16,814

Insurance Expense                     35,568 9,721

Interest on Late payment                     26,533 44,373

Penalties 19,800 67,000

Other Expenses                   735,052 1,976,457

TOTAL Rs. 7,176,172 4,842,422

Payment to Auditors

Audit Fee                   215,000 250,000

TOTAL Rs. 215,000 250,000

NOTE 25 : INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Tax

      Current tax on taxable income for the year                           -                          -

      Adjustments for the current tax of prior periods                   696,262 216,489

Total Current Tax Expenses                  696,262 216,489

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Charge/(credit)                     14,319 319,889

Total Deferred Tax Expenses                    14,319 319,889

Total Income Tax Expenses                  710,581 536,378
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The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial
statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate
that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be
received or settled.

Types of inputs for determining fair value are as under:

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of investment in
quoted equity shares, and mutual fund investments.The mutual funds are valued using the closing
NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

i) Transfers between Levels 1 and 2

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the reporting periods.

ii) Transfer out of Level 3

There were no movement in level 3 in either directions during the financial year ending on 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019.

B.   Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables.
The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of  cash and cash equivalents, other balances with
banks, loans, trade receivables and other receivables.

The Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The Board of Directors
(‘Board’) oversee the management of these financial risks through its Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Policy of the Company formulated by the Board, states the Company’s approach
to address uncertainties in its endeavor to achieve its stated and implicit objectives. It prescribes the
roles and responsibilities of the Company’s management, the structure for managing risks and the
framework for risk management. The framework seeks to identify, assess and mitigate financial
risks in order to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The following disclosures summarize the Company’s exposure to financial risks. Quantitative
sensitivity analysis have been provided to reflect the impact of reasonably possible changes in market
rates on the financial results, cash flows and financial position of the Company.

1) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings,
trade payables, trade receivables, loans and derivative financial instruments.

a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Company has insignificant
interest bearing borrowings, the exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates is minimal.
The Company has not used any interest rate derivatives.
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b) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.The Company operates, in addition to domestic
markets, significantly in international markets through its sales and services in overseas in US$
and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions,
primarily with respect to the US$.The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments
for trading or speculative purposes.

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposure

(a) Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date are as follows:
(Amount in Rs.)

Unhedged Exposures Foreign As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Currency Amount Amount Amount Amount

Denomination in Foreign in Rs. in Foreign in Rs.
Currency  Currency

Trade Receivable USD         2,130,545   153,659,464    2,130,545  160,366,138

Trade Payable USD             20,568       1,511,748         20,568      1,548,153

(b) Foreign Currency  Risk Sensitivity

The Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD. The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a 5% increase or decrease in the USD against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity
analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the Company as at the reporting date. 5%
represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.

A change in Foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax
(Amount in Lacs)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

5% Increase 5% Decrease 5% Increase 5% Decrease

USD 76.07 (76.07)             79.41 (79.41)

C) Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market traded price.Other price risk arises from financial assets such as investments in equity
instruments.The Company’s has no investments in quoted equity instruments, therefore the Company
has no Other Price risk.

2) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company.To
manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter
parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical
bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on
the basis of such information.The Company considers Credit risk arises primarily from financial
assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, and loans.

Credit risk arising from  other balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against
these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by the credit rating agencies.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where receivables have been written
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off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based
on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of
receivable is not material hence no provision considered.

Ageing of Account receivables
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Outstanding for more than 12 Months 153,659,464 160,368,649

Total 153,659,464 160,368,649

Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit
risk.

3) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach of
the company to manage liquidity is to ensure , as far as possible, that these will have sufficient
liquidity to meet their respective liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to their reputation. The company
assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments. (Amount in Rs.)

As on 31st March 2021 Less than Between Beyond Total
1 year 1 to 5 Years 5 years

Borrowings

- Non current                    -        265,255           265,255

- Current      139,546,221                -                   -     139,546,221

Trade payables        15,756,038                -                   -       15,756,038

Other financial liabilities

- Current         2,026,095                -                   -         2,026,095

Total 157,328,354       265,255                  -   157,593,609

(Amount in Rs.)

As on 31st March 2020 Less than Between Beyond Total
1 year 1 to 5 Years 5 years

Borrowings

- Current      125,845,264                -                   -     125,845,264

Trade payables        21,840,305                -                   -       21,840,305

Other financial liabilities

- Current         2,439,649                -                   -         2,439,649

Total 150,125,219                -                   -   150,125,219
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NOTE  28 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain
an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value.

The capital structure of the group is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of
key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in
proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth
of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its
capital structure.

NOTE 27 : DISCLOSURE UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT
ACT, 2006 ARE PROVIDED AS UNDER FOR THE YEAR 2019-2020, TO THE EXTENT THE COMPANY
HAS RECEIVED INTIMATION  FROM THE “SUPPLIERS” REGARDING THEIR STATUS UNDER THE
ACT.

PARTICULARS  As at  As at
31st March, 31st March,

2021  2020

(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to each supplier at the end of each accounting year
(but within due date as per the MSMED Act)
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise                      -                      -
Interest due on above                      -                      -

(ii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
along-with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the period                      -                      -

(iii) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the period) but without adding interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Development
Enterprises Act, 2006                      -                      -

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year                      -                      -

(v) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprises                      -                      -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified
on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Note: 28 Information on Related Party Transactions As Required By Ind As- 24 - ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ For The Year Ended 31st March, 2021
(i) Name of the Related Party and Nature of Relationship

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Sunny S. Gandhi Executive Director
Shruti Sunny Gandhi Director
Pravin Dahyabhai Shah Independent Director
Shivil Kapoor Independent Director
Anshul Garg Compliance Officer
Prabodhchandra Vidyadhar Joshi Chief Financial Officer

b) Subsidiary Company (SC)
Sunraj Diamonds DMCC

c) Enterprise under significant influence of key management personnel (Enterprise)
Sunraj Investment & Finance Pvt Ltd
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd

d) Relative of directors
Sean Gandhi

(ii) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (i) above, in ordinary course of business:

Amount (In Rs.)

Nature of Transactions Relationship As At As At
31st March, 31st March,

2021 2020

(a) Remuneration
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP - 650,000

(b) Interest Paid
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 7,868,862 6,548,830

(c) Loan Taken
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP 15,790,115 13,098,956

(d) Loan Repaid
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP 8,072,868 12,955,055
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 1,812,000 5,726,000

(e) Amount Payable
As Unsecured Loan
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP 81,763,402 74,046,156
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 52,462,220 46,405,359

(f) As Investment
As Equity Shares
Sunraj Diamond DMCC Subsidiary Company 5,952,100 5,952,100

(g) Commission
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 690,000 -

(h) Purchase of asset
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 34,618 -

(i) Salary
Sean Gandhi Relative Of Director - 132,000
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i) All related Party Transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business
and are on arm’s length basis.

ii) No amounts pertaining to related parties have been provided for as doubtful debts. Also no
amounts have been written off or written back during the year.

NOTE 29 : EARNING PER SHARE

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As At As At
31st March, 31st March,

2021 2020

Earning Per Share has been computed as under:

Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (13,101,906) (2,420,500)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 5,330,400 5,330,400

Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupees

(Face Value – 10 per share) (2.46) (0.45)

NOTE  30: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As At As At
31st March, 31st March,

2021 2020

a. Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Income Tax matter in dispute under appeal              7,434,314 7,434,314

TOTAL            7,434,314 7,434,314

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances)                        -                       -

TOTAL   -                       -

NOTE: 31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS

Defined Benefit Plan:

The company has not undertaken the acturial valuation as per IND AS 19. Hence the impact of the same
on the financial statements have not been ascertained.
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NOTE: 32 SEGMENT REPORTING

The company is primarily engaged in single business segment viz.,  Trading in Gems and precious
metals, hence  there are no separate reportable primary  segments as per Indian Accounting Standard
108  Operating Segments.

NOTE: 33 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, requires every Company having a net worth of
Rupees 500 crore or more, or turnover of Rupees 1000 crore or more or a net profit of rupees 5 crore or
more during the immediately preceding financial year shall spend at least 2% of the average net profits
of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). The Company doesn’t fall in any of the above criteria, hence provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.

NOTE: 34 ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared Covid-19 a global pandemic. Consequent to
this, Government of India declared nation-wide lockdown on 24 March 2020, which has impacted normal
business operations of the Company.The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in
India has impacted business, financial markets and economy all over the world including India. Based
on the internal and external information available upto the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of inventories, receivables and investments. The
Company does not foresee any material impact on liquidity and assumption of a going concern. The
Company will continue to monitor future market conditions and update its assessment.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)
Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of

Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited

I. Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

1. Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Sunraj Diamond Exports
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to financial statement,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report,
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss
and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. As per the note no. 31: Employee Benefits, the company has not made the provision of
employee cost with reference to the retirement benefits of the employees.

2. The company has delayed in transferring the amount to Investors Education Protection
Fund Account as required by the section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013. Details of delay is
available under II(H)(iii) of the audit report.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. Other Matter

We did not audit the financial information of the subsidiary company as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor
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whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
the subsidiary and our report in terms of 143(3) of the act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the auditors.Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements above and our report on the other legal and regulatory requirements below is not
modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the
reports of the other auditors

4. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
not determined any key audit matters which needs specific mention.

5. Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Consolidated Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

6. Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The
Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

7. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication

II. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

A. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account

D. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014

E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

F. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
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and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.

G. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:In our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

H. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have pending litigations having impact on its financial position
in its Consolidated Financial Statements

ii) The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts

iii) The company has delayed in transferring of dividend to Investor Education Protection
Fund as under:

Financial Year Amount Due date of payment Date of payment

2010-11 6,22,518 19th October, 2018 24th August, 2020

2011-12 6,48,107 17th October, 2019 Not yet transferred

2012-13 6,52,199 19th October, 2020 Not yet transferred

2. Since, the report is on the consolidated financial statements, the report under the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) is not required to be issued

For Govind Prasad and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Signature
Govind Prasad

Partner
M. No.: 047948

UDIN:21047948AAAACG2116
Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th June 2021
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sunraj Diamond Exports
Limited. (“The Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Govind Prasad and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 114360W

Signature
Govind Prasad

Partner
M. No.: 047948

UDIN:21047948AAAACG2116
Place : Mumbai
Date : 30th June 2021
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ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 501,171 558,037
Intangible Assets 3 18,052 4,480
Financial Assets
      Investments 4 15,000 15,000
      Other Financial Assets 5 469,800 369,800
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 6 490,499 504,818
Non-current Assets - 2,434,965

1,494,522 3,887,100
Current Assets
Inventories 3,336,996 2,666,962
Financial Assets
      Trade Receivables 7 154,208,874 172,150,184
      Cash and Cash Equivalents 8A 793,090 609,190
      Other Balance with Banks 8B 1,300,306 1,908,028
      Loans 9 17,000 53,000
Other Current Assets 10 1,902,751 2,961,841

161,559,016 180,349,206
TOTAL ASSETS 163,053,539 184,236,306
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 11A 53,304,000 53,304,000
Other Equity 11B (53,289,480) (26,288,995)

14,520 27,015,005
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
       Borrowings 12 265,255 555,627

265,255 555,627
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
       Borrowings 13 144,688,830 131,672,519
       Trade Payables 14
             Due to Micro and Small Enterprises - -
             Due to Others 15,977,214 21,840,305
       Other Financial Liabilities 15 2,026,095 2,439,649
Other Current Liabilities 16 81,625 713,200

162,773,764 156,665,674
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 163,053,539 184,236,306
Significant Accounting Policies and key accounting
estimates and judgements 1
Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS NOTES As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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Revenue from Operations 17 12,411,960 7,759,768
Other Income 18 561,234 13,506,002
TOTAL INCOME (I) 12,973,194 21,265,770
EXPENSES
Purchase of Stock in Trade 19 7,438,794 4,699,995
Change in Inventories of Finished Goods & Raw Material 20 (670,034) 2,423,958
Employee Benefit Expenses 21 1,892,759 3,905,808
Finance Cost 22 8,933,175 6,977,193
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 23 37,695 329,408
Other Expenses 24 21,392,360 18,346,016

TOTAL (II) 39,024,749 36,682,377

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (26,051,554) (15,416,607)
Tax Expenses 25
       Current Tax - -
       Deferred Tax 14,319 319,889
       Tax in respect of earlier years 696,262 216,489

710,581 536,378
PROFIT (LOSS) AFTER TAX (26,762,136) (15,952,986)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)
        Items that will not be reclassified to

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss - -
        Items that will  be reclassified to

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss - -
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR        (26,762,136) (15,952,986)
Profit (Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the company (26,762,136) (15,952,986)
Non-Controlling Interest - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company        (26,762,136) (15,952,986)
Non-Controlling interest                         - -
Earnings per equity share (Face value of 10 each) 31
1) Basic (in Rs.)                    (5.02) (2.99)
2) Diluted (in Rs.)                    (5.02) (2.99)
Significant Accounting Policies and
key accounting estimates and judgements 1
Notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31ST MARCH 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS NOTES Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before tax (26,051,554) (15,416,608)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and Amortisation & Exceptional items 37,695 329,408
Loss on sale of asset 49,543 -
Provision for doubtful debts 13,922,500 13,229,658
Exchange rate difference 3,777,798 -
Translation difference (238,349) 1,304,926
Finance Costs 8,933,175 6,977,193
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 430,807 6,424,577
Adjustment for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 204,609 (10,192,754)
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets (64,000) 217,000
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (670,034) 2,423,958
(Increase) / Decrease in Other assets 3,594,676 1,702,148
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other payables (7,182,999) (986,377)
Cash generated from Operations activities (3,686,941) (411,448)
         Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (189,161) (216,489)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (3,876,102) (627,937)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property, Plant and equipment (52,418) (108,771)
Sale of Property, Plant and equipment 8,474 -
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (43,944) (108,771)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings (net of borrowings repaid) 13,037,120 7,302,603
Finance Cost (8,933,175) (6,977,193)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) 4,103,945 325,410
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & EQUIVALENTS 183,900 (411,299)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 609,190 1,020,489
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 793,090 609,190

(a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under
the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind-As-7)- Statement of Cash Flow

(b) PARTICULAR As at As at
31st MARCH,2021  31st March,2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of
Balance with Banks:
            -Current Accounts                             687,359 510,678
Cash on hand                             105,730 98,512
Cash and Cash Equivalent in Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 793,090 609,190

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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Balance at the beginning of the Reporting period 53,304,000 53,304,000

Changes in Equity Share capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the reporting period 53,304,000 53,304,000

B : OTHER EQUITY Amount (In Rs.)

OTHER EQUITY Reserves & Surplus Other Total
Capital General Retained Comprehensive

Reserve Reserve Earning Income
Exchange

differences on
translation of

foreign
operations

Balance as at 01st April 2019 (A) 598,000 569,718 (15,763,617) 2,954,964 (11,640,935)

Addition during the year:

Profit (Loss) for the period - (15,952,986) (15,952,986)

Items of OCI for the year, net of tax- - - -

Exchange differences on translationof

foreign operations 1,304,926 1,304,926

Total Comprehensive Income for the

period ended 31st March 2020(B) - - (15,952,986) 1,304,926 (14,648,060)

Reductions during the year - - - -

Total (C) - - - -

Balance as at 31st March 2020 (D)=(A+B+C) 598,000 569,718 (31,716,603) 4,259,890 (26,288,995)

Addition during the year:

Profit (Loss) for the period - - (26,762,136) (26,762,136)

Items of OCI for the year, net of tax- - - - -

Exchange differences on translationof

foreign operations - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the

period ended 31/03/2021 (E) - - (26,762,136) - (26,762,136)

Exchange differences on translationof

foreign operations - - - (238,349) (238,349.00)

Total (F) - - - (238,349) (238,349)

Balance as at 31st March 2021

(G)=(D+E+F) 598,000 569,718 (58,478,739) 4,021,541 (53,289,480)

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2021

A : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)

Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
COMPANY OVERVIEW

Sunraj Diamonds exports limited is a public limited company has been incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed in BSE Stock Exchange. The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing, trading and exporting of gold jewellery, cut and polished
diamond and silver items.

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the functional and
reporting currency. Recognition and Measurement of foreign transction have been disclosed in
note 3(t.) below.

c. Basis of Measurement

The company financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

d. Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as at the date of the   financial statements and the reported amounts of
income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods
are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the   financial statements, which may
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets.

i) Impairment of investments

The company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually,
or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in
future periods.
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iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets

The company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

e. Measurement of Fair Values

The company has established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
The company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in fair
value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company’s Board of Directors.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e derived from prices).

Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

f. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods
or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account
of various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable
consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable
consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not
be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

i) Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been
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transferred to the customer. The performance obligation in case of sale of product is
satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery
to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

ii) Interest Income

Interest income on deposits, securities and loans is recognised at the agreed rate on time
proportionate basis.

iii) Dividend income:

Dividend income on investments is recognised as and when received.

g. Earning per Share :

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit
attributable to equity shareholders (after adjustment for diluted earnings) by average number
of weighted equity shares outstanding during the year plus potential equity shares.

h. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the accounts
by way of a note. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the   financial
statements.

i. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits
with banks and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to know
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value where
original maturity is three months or less.

j. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby the profit before tax is adjusted for
the effect of the transactions of a non cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past and future
operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

k Property, Plant And Equipment

i) Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if
any, except freehold land which is carried at historical cost.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
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intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Useful lives have been determined in accordance with Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

Capital Work-in-progress includes cost of assets at sites and constructions expenditure.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of
profit and loss.

ii) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii) Depreciation/Amortisation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
freehold land and properties under construction) less their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is generally recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Amortization on leasehold land is provided over the period
of lease.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-
end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice,
the management believes that its estimates of useful lives best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation
are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the
date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

v) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
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difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

l. Recognition of Dividend Income, Interest Income

Dividend on financial instruments is recognized as and when realized. Interest is recognized on
accrual basis.

m. Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

i) Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward
tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case
of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and
are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities, but they intend
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

n. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The Company
currently does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful life. Intangible assets are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

o. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value except scrap and by products
which are valued at net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present
location and condition are accounted for as follows:

i) Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity,
but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

p. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

1 Financial assets

i) Classification

º%A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at Fair Value through Profit and Loss Account (FVTPL):
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-  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

-  the contractual terms of a financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

º% A debt investment is measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

º% Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition except if
and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset when it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments and measures at its fair value except trade
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss. A regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at
trade date.

iii) Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial assets at FVTPL :- These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost :-These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is recognized in profit or loss.

iv) Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its
balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.
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2 Financial Liabilities

i) Classification, Subsequent Measurement and Gains and Losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative
or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured
at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized
in profit or loss.

ii) Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the profit
or loss.

iii) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off set and the net amount presented in the
Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

q. Impairment

i) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt
instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits
and trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company
to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such
that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
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Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.,
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation
for various financial instruments is described below:

º%Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.,
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. the allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount

º%Debt instruments measured at FVTPL: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. The change in fair
value is taken to the statement of Profit and Loss.

º%Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at
fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount
is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified
on a timely basis.

ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.
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r. Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

ii) Long term Employee Benefits:

Provident Fund and Superannuation Contribution are accrued each year in terms of
contracts with the employees. Provision for Gratuity is determined and accrued on the
basis of actuarial valuation. Leave encashment benefit to employees has been provided on
an estimated basis.

s. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

t. Foreign currency transactions and foreign operations

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are
recorded in the functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency
amount, the spot exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the
transaction dates. Realized gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end
exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined.
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NOTE 4 : NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Non Current Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments at Cost
Investment in other company
150 equity shares of Rander Peoples’ Co-op. Bank Limited

of Rs 100 each fully paid (31st March,2020 - 150 shares)                        15,000 15,000

Total Investments in Unquoted Equity Shares                       15,000 15,000

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments -At Cost                        15,000 15,000

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments                              -                          -

NOTE 5 : OTHER  FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits                     469,800 369,800

TOTAL Rs. 469,800 369,800

NOTE 6 : DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, plant and equipment - difference between value of

assets as per book base and tax base                     490,499 504,818

Total Deferred Tax Assets                   490,499 504,818

NOTE: 7 NON CURRENT ASSETS
Advance to suppliers                  7,161,661 7,161,661

Less: Provision for doubtful debts                (7,161,661) (4,726,696)

- 2,434,965

NOTE 8 : TRADE RECEIVABLES *
Secured, considered good                            - -

Unsecured, considered good               154,208,874 172,150,184

Unsecured, considered doubtful                34,357,657 22,870,122

188,566,531 195,020,306
Less: Allowances for unsecured doubtful debts                34,357,657 22,870,122
TOTAL Rs. 154,208,874 172,150,184

Note 8.1 The Company’s management is of the opinion that Trade Receivables from foreign customers are

considered the same as good and receivable and this amount is realizable,  hence no adjustments have

been made in the consolidated  financial statements because the management is confident of recovery of

these receivables.
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

NOTE 9 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES *

(A) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(a) Balances with Banks

(i) Current Accounts 687,359 510,678

(b) Cash on hand 105,730 98,512

TOTAL Rs. 793,090 609,190

(B) Other Balances with Banks

Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 1,300,306 1,908,028

TOTAL Rs. 1,300,306 1,908,028

* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments,

fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 10 : Loans*

Loans to Employees 17,000 53,000

TOTAL Rs. 17,000 53,000

* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments,

fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid  Expenses                     106,649 117,716

Balance with Statutory Authorities                  1,796,102 2,844,126

TOTAL Rs. 1,902,751 2,961,841
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NOTE 11A : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
80,00,000 (P.Y. 80,00,00) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 80,000,000 80,000,000

80,000,000          80,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Capital
53,30,400 (P.Y. 53,30,400)  Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 53,304,000 53,304,000

         53,304,000          53,304,000

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
PARTICULARS As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
No. of Shares Amount In Rs. No. of Shares Amount In Rs.

At the beginning of the year        5,330,400       53,304,000             5,330,400            53,304,000
Add: Issued during the year                   -                   -                        -                        -
At the end of the year      5,330,400     53,304,000            5,330,400          53,304,000

b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each Equity Shareholder is entitled
to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Name of the Shareholders As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held Equity Shares

Sunny Sunil Gandhi        1,320,800 24.78%             1,320,800 24.78%
Gunvanti Chandrakant Gandhi           375,000 7.04%                375,000 7.04%

NOTE 11B : OTHER EQUITY
OTHER EQUITY Reserves & Surplus Other Total

Capital General Retained Comprehensive
Reserve Reserve Earning Income

Exchange
differences on
translation of

foreign
operations

Balance as at 01st April 2019 (A) 598,000 569,718 (15,763,617) 2,954,964 (11,640,935)
Addition during the year:
Profit (Loss) for the period - (15,952,986) (15,952,986)
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax- - - -
Exchange differences on translationof
foreign operations 1,304,926 1,304,926
Total Comprehensive Income for the
period ended 31st March 2020(B) - - (15,952,986) 1,304,926 (14,648,060)
Reductions during the year - - - -
Total (C) - - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2020 (D)=(A+B+C) 598,000 569,718 (31,716,603) 4,259,890 (26,288,995)
Addition during the year:
Profit (Loss) for the period - - (26,762,136) (26,762,136)
Items of OCI for the year, net of tax- - - - -
Exchange differences on translationof
foreign operations - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the
period ended 31/03/2021 (E) - - (26,762,136) - (26,762,136)
Exchange differences on translationof
foreign operations - - - (238,349) (238,349.00)
Total (F) - - - (238,349) (238,349)
Balance as at 31st March 2021
(G)=(D+E+F) 598,000 569,718 (58,478,739) 4,021,541 (53,289,480)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS As at As at
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

NOTE 12 : NON CURRENT BORROWINGS *
Secured Loan
From Banks                     265,255 555,627
(Secured against Mercedes Benz)
TOTAL Rs. 265,255 555,627
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note no. 15)
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement 311,181 222,021

Note:
12.1 Vehicle Loan, balance outstanding amounting to Rs. 5.76 Lacs (P.Y. Rs 7.78) is secured by Hire

Purchase agreement for vehicles and repayable in 38 monthly installments.Last installment due
in December,2022.

12.2 Installments falling due in respect of all the above Loans up to 31/03/2021 have been grouped
under “Current maturities of long-term debt”.

12.3 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans & interest in current and previous year.

NOTE 13 : CURRENT BORROWINGS *
Unsecured Loan
From Directors 139,409,080 79,873,410
Inter Corporate Loans 5,279,750 51,799,109
TOTAL Rs. 144,688,830 131,672,519
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 14 : TRADE PAYABLES *
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 29) - -
Due to others 15,977,214 21,840,305
TOTAL Rs. 15,977,214 21,840,305
* Refer note 27 - Financial instruments, fair values and risk measurement

NOTE 15 : OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Refer Note 12) 311,181 222,021
Provision for Employee Benefits 232,300 295,600
Unclaimed Dividend* 1,300,306 1,908,028
Provision for expenses 132,308 14,000
Security Deposit 50,000 -
TOTAL Rs. 2,026,095 2,439,649

* There is  an amount due and outstanding to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund as on 31st March 2021 for the Financial year 2011-12 & 2012-13 of Rs. RS.6,48,107 & 6,52,199
respectively.

NOTE 16 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory liabilities 81,625 111,800
Other Payable - 26,400
Advances from Customers - 575,000
TOTAL Rs. 81,625 713,200
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

NOTE 17 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products 7,367,672 7,759,768

Sale of services 5,044,288                          -

TOTAL Rs. 12,411,960 7,759,768

NOTE 18 : OTHER INCOME
Net Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - 13,063,751

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - 309,020

Interest on IT Refund - 17,280

Balance Written -Off Income - 106,790
Discount Received 5,276 9,161

Other Income 555,958                          -

TOTAL Rs. 561,234 13,506,002

NOTE 19 : COST OF TRADED GOODS
Purchase of Stock in Trade 7,438,794 4,699,851
Direct Expenses - 144

TOTAL Rs. 7,438,794 4,699,995

NOTE 20 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & RAW MATERIAL
Inventories at the end of the year

       Finished Goods 3,336,996 2,628,946
       Raw Material - 38,016

3,336,996 2,666,962
Inventories at the beginning of the year

       Finished Goods 2,628,946 5,052,904

       Raw Material 38,016 38,016

Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods & Raw Material (670,034) 2,423,958

NOTE 21 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,887,700 3,230,900

Director Remuneration - 650,000

Staff Welfare Expenses 5,059 24,908

TOTAL Rs. 1,892,759 3,905,808

NOTE 22 : FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expenses 8,907,554 6,942,352

Other Finance cost 25,621 34,841

TOTAL Rs. 8,933,175 6,977,193
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021
Amount (In Rs.)

PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended
31st March 31st March

2021 2020

NOTE 23 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments 37,695 329,408

TOTAL Rs. 37,695 329,408

NOTE 24 : OTHER EXPENSES

Audit Fees 215,000 250,000

Commission 690,000                          -

Loss on sale of asset 49,543                          -

Exchange gain difference 3,777,798                          -

Legal & Professional Fees 430,977 722,746

Conveyance Expenses 37,378 10,825

Rent Charges 978,000 1,649,500

Repair and Maintenance 171,966 94,986

Telephone Expenses 8,558 16,814

Insurance Expense 35,568 9,721

Interest on Late payment 26,533 44,373

Penalties 19,800 67,000

Other Expenses 1,028,740 2,250,393

Provision for Doubtful Debt 13,922,500 13,229,658

TOTAL Rs. 21,392,360 18,346,016

Payment to Auditors

Audit Fee 215,000 250,000

TOTAL Rs. 215,000 250,000

NOTE 25 : INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Current Tax

Current tax on taxable income for the year -                          -

Adjustments for the current tax of prior periods 696,262 216,489

Total Current Tax Expenses 696,262 216,489

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Charge/(credit)                     14,319 319,889

Total Deferred Tax Expenses                    14,319 319,889

Total Income Tax Expenses                  710,581 536,378
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The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company
does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would
eventually be received or settled.

Types of inputs for determining fair value are as under:

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of investment in
quoted equity shares, and mutual fund investments.The mutual funds are valued using the closing
NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

i) Transfers between Levels 1 and 2

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the reporting periods.

ii) Transfer out of Level 3

There were no movement in level 3 in either directions during the financial year ending on 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019.

B. Financial risk management

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables.
The Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of  cash and cash equivalents, other balances with
banks, loans, trade receivables and other receivables.

The Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. The Board of Directors
(‘Board’) oversee the management of these financial risks through its Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Policy of the Company formulated by the Board, states the Company’s approach
to address uncertainties in its endeavor to achieve its stated and implicit objectives. It prescribes the
roles and responsibilities of the Company’s management, the structure for managing risks and the
framework for risk management. The framework seeks to identify, assess and mitigate financial
risks in order to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The following disclosures summarize the Company’s exposure to financial risks. Quantitative
sensitivity analysis have been provided to reflect the impact of reasonably possible changes in market
rates on the financial results, cash flows and financial position of the Company.

1) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risks: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes borrowings,
trade payables, trade receivables, loans and derivative financial instruments.

a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since the Company has insignificant
interest bearing borrowings, the exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates is minimal.
The Company has not used any interest rate derivatives.
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b) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.The Company operates, in addition to domestic
markets, significantly in international markets through its sales and services in overseas in US$
and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions,
primarily with respect to the US$.The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments
for trading or speculative purposes.

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposure

(a) Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the reporting date are as follows:
(Amount in Rs.)

Unhedged Exposures Foreign As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Currency Amount Amount Amount Amount

Denomination in Foreign in Rs. in Foreign in Rs.
Currency  Currency

Trade Receivable USD         2,130,545   153,659,464    2,130,545  160,366,138

Trade Payable USD             20,568       1,511,748         20,568      1,548,153

(b) Foreign Currency  Risk Sensitivity

The Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD. The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a 5% increase or decrease in the USD against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity
analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the Company as at the reporting date. 5%
represents management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.

A change in Foreign currency would have following Impact on profit before tax
(Amount in Lacs)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

5% Increase 5% Decrease 5% Increase 5% Decrease

USD 76.07 (76.07)             79.41 (79.41)

C) Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market traded price.Other price risk arises from financial assets such as investments in equity
instruments.The Company’s has no investments in quoted equity instruments, therefore the Company
has no Other Price risk.

2) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Company.To
manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter
parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical
bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on
the basis of such information.The Company considers Credit risk arises primarily from financial
assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, and loans.

Credit risk arising from  other balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against
these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by the credit rating agencies.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where receivables have been written



SUNRAJ DIAMOND EXPORTS LTD.

112

off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend,
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based
on actual credit loss experience and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of
receivable is not material hence no provision considered.

Ageing of Account receivables
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Outstanding for more than 12 Months 153,659,464  172,150,184

Total 153,659,464 172,150,184

Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit
risk.

3) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach of
the company to manage liquidity is to ensure , as far as possible, that these will have sufficient
liquidity to meet their respective liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage to their reputation. The company
assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments. (Amount in Rs.)

As on 31st March 2021 Less than Between Beyond Total
1 year 1 to 5 Years 5 years

Borrowings

- Non current - 265,255           265,255

- Current 144,688,830 -                   -     144,688,830

Trade payables 15,977,214 -                   -       15,977,214

Other financial liabilities

- Current         2,026,095                -                   -         2,026,095

Total 162,692,139       265,255                  -   162,957,394

(Amount in Rs.)

As on 31st March 2020 Less than Between Beyond Total
1 year 1 to 5 Years 5 years

Borrowings

Current      131,672,519                -                   -     131,672,519

Trade payables        21,840,305                -                   -       21,840,305

Other financial liabilities

Current         2,439,649                -                   -         2,439,649

Total 155,952,474                -                   -   155,952,474
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NOTE  28 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain
an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value.

The capital structure of the group is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of
key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in
proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth
of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its
capital structure.

NOTE 27 : DISCLOSURE UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT
ACT, 2006 ARE PROVIDED AS UNDER FOR THE YEAR 2019-2020, TO THE EXTENT THE COMPANY
HAS RECEIVED INTIMATION  FROM THE “SUPPLIERS” REGARDING THEIR STATUS UNDER THE
ACT.

PARTICULARS  As at  As at
31st March, 31st March,

2021  2020

(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to each supplier at the end of each accounting year
(but within due date as per the MSMED Act)
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise                      -                      -
Interest due on above                      -                      -

(ii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
along-with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during the period                      -                      -

(iii) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the period) but without adding interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Development
Enterprises Act, 2006                      -                      -

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year                      -                      -

(v) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprises                      -                      -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified
on the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Note: 28 Information on Related Party Transactions As Required By Ind As- 24 - ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ For The Year Ended 31st March, 2021
(i) Name of the Related Party and Nature of Relationship

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Sunny S. Gandhi Executive Director
Shruti Sunny Gandhi Director
Pravin Dahyabhai Shah Independent Director
Shivil Kapoor Independent Director
Anshul Garg Compliance Officer
Prabodhchandra Vidyadhar Joshi Chief Financial Officer

b) Subsidiary Company (SC)
Sunraj Diamonds DMCC

c) Enterprise under significant influence of key management personnel (Enterprise)
Sunraj Investment & Finance Pvt Ltd
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd

d) Relative of directors
Sean Gandhi

(ii) Transactions carried out with related parties referred in (i) above, in ordinary course of business:

Amount (In Rs.)

Nature of Transactions Relationship As At As At
31st March, 31st March,

2021 2020

(a) Remuneration
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP - 650,000

(b) Interest Paid
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 7,868,862 6,548,830

(c) Loan Taken
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP 15,790,115 13,098,956

(d) Loan Repaid
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP 8,072,868 12,955,055
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 1,812,000 5,726,000

(e) Amount Payable
As Unsecured Loan
Sunny S. Gandhi KMP 81,763,402 74,046,156
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 52,462,220 46,405,359

(f) Commission
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 690,000 -

(g) Purchase of asset
K. D. Shah Investments Pvt Ltd Enterprise 34,618                        -

(h) Salary
Sean Gandhi Relative Of Director - 132,000

i) All related Party Transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and
are on arm’s length basis.

ii) No amounts pertaining to related parties have been provided for as doubtful debts. Also no amounts
have been written off or written back during the year
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NOTE 29 : EARNING PER SHARE
(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As At As At
31st March, 31st March,

2021 2020

Earning Per Share has been computed as under:

Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (26,762,136) (15,952,986)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 5,330,400 5,330,400

Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupees (5.02) (2.99)
(Face Value – 10 per share)

NOTE  30: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Amount in Rs.)

PARTICULARS As At As At
31st March, 31st March,

2021 2020

a. Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Income Tax matter in dispute under appeal 7,434,314 7,434,314

TOTAL 7,434,314 7,434,314
b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances) - -

TOTAL -  -

NOTE: 31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS

Defined Benefit Plan:

The company has not undertaken the acturial valuation as per IND AS 19. Hence the impact of the same
on the financial statements have not been ascertained.

NOTE: 32 SEGMENT REPORTING

The company is primarily engaged in single business segment viz.,  Trading in Gems and precious
metals, hence  there are no separate reportable primary  segments as per Indian Accounting Standard
108  Operating Segments.

NOTE: 33 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, requires every Company having a net worth of
Rupees 500 crore or more, or turnover of Rupees 1000 crore or more or a net profit of rupees 5 crore or
more during the immediately preceding financial year shall spend at least 2% of the average net profits
of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). The Company doesn’t fall in any of the above criteria, hence provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company.
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NOTE: 34 Group information

The Consolidated financial statement of the Group includes subsidiarires as mentioned below :

Sunraj Diamonds 73853.33% 110.78 48.96% (131.02) 48.96% (131.02)

Exports Limited

Subsidiary Company

Sunraj Diamonds -73753.33% -110.63 51.04% (136.60) 51.04%  (136.60)

DMCC, Dubai

Inter-company eliminations & 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Consolidation adjustments

Total 100.00% 0.15 100.00% -267.62 100.00% -267.62

NOTE: 35 ESTIMATION OF UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation declared Covid-19 a global pandemic. Consequent to
this, Government of India declared nation-wide lockdown on 24 March 2020, which has impacted normal
business operations of the Company.The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in
India has impacted business, financial markets and economy all over the world including India. Based
on the internal and external information available upto the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of inventories, receivables and investments. The
Company does not foresee any material impact on liquidity and assumption of a going concern. The
Company will continue to monitor future market conditions and update its assessment.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Govind Prasad and Co. Sunraj Diamond Exports Limited
Chartered Accountants
( Firm Reg. No. : 114360W)
Govind Prasad Sunny Gandhi Shivil Kapoor
Partner (Director) (Independent Director)
Membership No-047948 DIN-00695322 DIN-08616488
Date :30th June 2021, Place: Mumbai

Anshul Garg Prabodhchandra Joshi
(Company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)
Date :30th June 2021, Place:MUMBAI

Subsidiary Company Net Assets i.e. total assets
minus total liabilities

Share in Profit / (Loss) Share in Total
Comprehensive income

As % of
consolidated

net assets

Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

As % of
consolidated
profit or loss

Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

As % of
consolidated
comprehensive

Income

Amount
(Rs. in
Lakhs)
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